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(b)(1) Whenever the Attorney General 
files a civil action alleging a pattern or 
practice of discriminatory conduct on 
the basis of race, color, religion, na-
tional origin, or sex in any program or 
activity of a State government or unit 
of local government which State gov-
ernment or unit of local government 
receives funds made available under 
the JSIA or the Juvenile Justice Act 
and the conduct allegedly violates or 
would violate the provisions of this 
subpart or section 815(c)(1) of the JSIA 
and neither party within 45 days after 
such filing has been granted such pre-
liminary relief with regard to the sus-
pension or payment of funds as may 
otherwise be available by law, the Di-
rector of OJARS shall suspend further 
payment of any funds under the JSIA 
and the Juvenile Justice Act to that 
specific program or activity alleged by 
the Attorney General to be in violation 
of the provisions of section 815(c)(1) of 
the JSIA until such time as the court 
orders resumption of payment. 

(2) The Office expects that prelimi-
nary relief authorized by this sub-
section will not be granted unless the 
party making application for such re-
lief meets the standards for a prelimi-
nary injunction. 

(c)(1) Whenever a State government 
or unit of local government or any offi-
cer or employee thereof acting in an of-
ficial capacity, has engaged or is en-
gaging in any act or practice prohib-
ited by section 815(c)(1) of the JSIA, a 
civil action may be instituted after ex-
haustion of administrative remedies by 
the person aggrieved in an appropriate 
U.S. District Court or in a State court 
or general jurisdiction. 

(2) Administrative remedies shall be 
deemed to be exhausted upon the expi-
ration of 60 days after the date the ad-
ministrative complaint was filed with 
the Office or any other administrative 
enforcement agency, unless within 
such period there has been a deter-
mination by the Office or the agency 
on the merits of the complaint, in 
which case such remedies shall be 
deemed exhausted at the time the de-
termination becomes final. 

(3) The Attorney General, or a spe-
cifically designated assistant for or in 
the name of the United States may in-
tervene upon timely application in any 

civil action brought to enforce compli-
ance with section 815(c)(1) of the JSIA 
if he certifies that the action is of gen-
eral public importance. In such action 
the United States shall be entitled to 
the same relief as if it had instituted 
the action. 

APPENDIX A TO SUBPART D OF PART 42— 
COMMENTARY 

Section 42.201(c). The compliance enforce-
ment mechanism of section 815(c)(2) applies 
by its terms to State and local government. 
The prohibitions in section 815(c)(1), how-
ever, apply to all recipients of OJARS assist-
ance. Accordingly, where a private entity 
which has received LEAA, NIJ, or BJS as-
sistance through a State or local unit of gov-
ernment is determined by OJARS to be in 
non-compliance, OJARS will invoke the sec-
tion 815(c)(2) mechanism against the appro-
priate unit of government for its failure to 
enforce the assurances of compliance given 
it by the private recipient, unless the unit 
has initiated its own compliance action 
against the private recipient. The fund ter-
mination procedures of section 803(a) will be 
invoked against non-complying private re-
cipients which receive assistance directly 
from LEAA, NIJ, or BJS, or through another 
private entity. 

Section 42.202(g). Section 815(c)(1) of the 
JSIA limits suspension and termination of 
assistance in the event of noncompliance to 
the ‘‘programs or activity’’ in which the non-
compliance is found. The phrase ‘‘program or 
activity’’ was first used in section 815(c)(1) of 
the Crime Control Act of 1976, the substan-
tially identical predecessor to section 
815(c)(1). 

House Report No. 94–1155 (94th Congress, 2d 
Session), at p. 26, explained the provision as 
follows: 

‘‘Suspension may be limited to the specific 
program or activity found to have discrimi-
nated, rather than all of the recipients’ 
LEAA funds. 

‘‘For example, if discriminatory employ-
ment practices in a city’s police department 
were cited in the notification, LEAA may 
only suspend that part of the city’s pay-
ments which fund the police department. 
LEAA may not suspend the city’s LEAA 
funds which are used in the city courts, pris-
ons, or juvenile justice agencies.’’ 
This passage makes it clear that OJARS 
need not demonstrate a nexus between the 
particular project funded and the discrimina-
tory activity. See Lau v. Nichols, 414 U.S. 563, 
566 (1974). 

Sections 42.203(b) and 42.203(e-i). These pro-
visions are derived from 28 CFR 42.104(b) of 
subpart C of the Department of Justice Non-
discrimination Regulations. Where appro-
priate ‘‘sex’’ and ‘‘religion’’ have been added 
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as prohibited grounds of discrimination, and 
‘‘denial of employment’’ as another activity 
within the scope of section 815(c)(1). 

Individual projects benefiting a particular 
sex, race, or ethnic group are not violative of 
section 815(c)(1) unless the granting agency 
or the recipient has engaged in a pattern of 
granting preferential treatment to one such 
group, and cannot justify the preference on 
the basis of a compelling governmental in-
terest, in the case of racial or ethnic dis-
crimination, or a substantial relationship to 
an important governmental function, in the 
case of sex discrimination. 

Section 42.203(b)(10). On August 25, 1978, the 
Department of Justice, the Equal Employ-
ment Opportunity Commission, the Depart-
ment of Labor and the then-Civil Service 
Commission published the Uniform Em-
ployee Selection Guidelines codified at 28 
CFR 50.14. Since OJARS is a component of 
the Department, these guidelines are appli-
cable to the selection procedures of LEAA, 
NIJ, and BJS recipients. See 44 FR 11996 
(March 2, 1979) for a detailed commentary on 
the guidelines. 

Section 42.203(c). In the Conference Report 
on section 518(c) of the Crime Control Act 
(the substantially identical predecessor of 
section 815(c)), the managers stated that ‘‘In 
the area of employment cases brought under 
this section, it is intended by the conferees 
that the standards of title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 apply.’’ H. Rept. No. 94– 
1723 (94th Cong., 2d Sess.) at p. 32. 

This section makes the OJARS standards 
of employment discrimination consistent 
with those used by the Civil Rights Division 
of the Department of Justice. It further 
clarifies that the burden shifts to the em-
ployer to validate its selection procedures 
once OJARS has demonstrated that those 
procedures disproportionately exclude an af-
fected class. Discriminatory purpose on the 
part of the employer, which must be shown 
before the burden shifts in a Fourteenth 
Amendment case such as Washington v. 
Davis, 426 U.S. 229, 96 S. Ct. 2040 (1976), need 
not be shown in an employment discrimina-
tion case brought under section 815(c)(1). 

Section 42.203(j). Section 815(b) of the JSIA 
reads: 

‘‘Notwithstanding any other provision of 
law, nothing contained in this title shall be 
construed to authorize the National Insti-
tute of Justice, the Bureau of Justice Statis-
tics, or the Law Enforcement Assistance Ad-
ministration (1) to require, or condition the 
availability or amount of a grant upon the 
adoption by an applicant or grantee under 
this title of a percentage ratio, quota sys-
tem, or other program to achieve racial bal-
ance in any criminal justice agency; or (2) to 
deny or discontinue a grant because of the 
refusal of an applicant or grantee under this 
title to adopt such a ratio, system, or other 
program.’’ 

In commenting on the Crime Control Act 
of 1976, Senator Roman Hruska of Nebraska 
explained the difference between quotas and 
goals and timetables as follows: 

‘‘Section 518(b) [now 815(b)] of the act pro-
hibits the setting of quotas. This provision 
was unchanged, and this provision will still 
bind the Administration. 

‘‘LEAA does have an affirmative obligation 
under this law to seek to eliminate discrimi-
natory practices, voluntarily, if possible, 
prior to resorting to fund termination. 
LEAA can request that a recipient eliminate 
the effect of past discrimination by requiring 
the recipient to commit itself to goals and 
timetables. The formulation of goals is not a 
quota prohibited by section 518(b) of the act. 
A goal is a numerical objective fixed realisti-
cally in terms of the number of vacancies ex-
pected and the number of qualified appli-
cants available. Factors such as a lower at-
trition rate than expected, bona fide fiscal 
restraints, or a lack of qualified applicants 
would be acceptable reasons for not meeting 
a goal that has been established and no sanc-
tions would accrue under the program.’’ 
Cong. Rec. S 17320 (September 30, 1976, daily 
ed.). 

The Senate Judiciary Committee Report 
on the JSIA also emphasized that section 
815(b) does not ‘‘undercut subsection (c) in 
any way; subsection (b) has been interpreted 
so as not to limit LEAA’s anti-discrimina-
tion enforcement capabilities. Indeed, recent 
court decisions have made this abundantly 
clear. See, e.g., United States v. City of Los 
Angeles, No. 77–3460 (C.D. Cal. 2/1/79).’’ S. 
Rept. 96–142, p. 57. 

See also the Equal Employment Oppor-
tunity Commission Affirmative Action 
Guidelines, 44 FR 4422 (January 19, 1979). 

Section 42.204. All grantees and subgrantees 
must make the assurances found in para-
graph (a). Only State and local units of gov-
ernment and agencies thereof must make the 
assurance found in paragraph (c), since, as 
explained in the commentary on § 42.201(c), 
the enforcement provisions of section 
815(c)(2) apply only to governmental recipi-
ents. 

Section 42.205(a). Where information avail-
able to the Office clearly and convincingly 
demonstrates that the complaint is frivolous 
or otherwise without merit, the complaint 
will not be investigated, and the complain-
ant will be so advised. 

Section 42.205(b). A one-year timeliness re-
quirement is imposed to ensure that OJARS 
will be devoting its resources to the resolu-
tion of active issues, and to maximize the 
possibility that necessary witnesses and evi-
dence are still available. 

Examples of good cause which would clear-
ly warrant an extension of the filing period 
are a statement from the complainant stat-
ing that he or she was unware of the dis-
crimination until after a year had passed, or 
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that he or she was not aware that a remedy 
was available through OJARS. 

Section 42.205(c)(1). Jurisdiction exists if 
the complaint alleges discrimination on a 
ground prohibited by section 815(c)(1), if the 
recipient was receiving funds at the time of 
the discrimination, and the respondent 
named in the complaint is a current recipi-
ent of LEAA, NIJ, or BJS assistance. 

Prior to a determination of noncompli-
ance, OJARS will attempt to negotiate vol-
untary compliance only during the 30-day pe-
riod following receipt of the Office’s prelimi-
nary findings, and only at the request of the 
recipient, as provided in § 42.205(c)(3). If a de-
termination of noncompliance is made, 
OJARS will participate in voluntary compli-
ance efforts during the 90-day period fol-
lowing the letter sent to the chief execu-
tive(s) under section 42.208. 

Sections 42.205(c) (3) and (4) and 42.206(e). 
OJARS will notify the appropriate chief ex-
ecutive(s) of its recommendations during the 
voluntary resolution phase of both the com-
plaint investigation and compliance review 
process. OJARS expects that the early in-
volvement of the chief executive will often 
expedite the resolution of issues. 

Section 42.205(c)(5). OJARS will initiate an 
investigation if the litigation discussed in 
this subparagraph becomes protracted or ap-
parently will not resolve the matter within a 
reasonable time. 

Section 42.205(c)(6). In order to effectively 
utilize the resources of other agencies, and 
to avoid duplication of effort, OJARS may 
request another agency to act on a par-
ticular complaint. OJARS expects this prac-
tice to be limited, and will attempt to ensure 
that any cooperative agreement reached 
with another agency is consistent with the 
timetables set forth in § 42.205(c). 

Section 42.206(a). OJARS recognizes the 
practical impossibility of reviewing the com-
pliance of each of its more than 39,000 recipi-
ents. The regulations seek to expedite the re-
view process by reducing its length and nar-
rowing its focus. Compliance reviews may, in 
some instances, be limited to specific em-
ployment practices, or other functions of a 
recipient, that appear to have the greatest 
adverse impact on an affected class. 

Section 42.206(b). The factors listed will be 
considered cumulatively by OJARS in select-
ing recipients for reviews. OJARS will con-
sider data from all sources, including infor-
mation provided by both internal and exter-
nal auditors. 

Section 42.208(b). Upon receipt of the publi-
cations listed, OJARS will review the case 
reports for findings that may be violations of 
section 815(c)(1). In the case of the West Pub-
lishing Company reporters, OJARS will con-
sult the topic ‘‘Civil Rights’’ in the Key 
Number Digests contained in the advance 
sheets. 

Section 42.208(e). This subsection sets forth 
the minimum procedural safeguards that 
OJARS would require of an administrative 
hearing to assure the process was consistent 
with the Administrative Procedure Act. The 
sufficiency of other procedures that may 
vary in form but insure due process and the 
same opportunity for a fair hearing of both 
parties’ evidence will be determined by 
OJARS on a case-by-case basis. 

The Office will compile a list of State 
agencies whose procedures have been found 
consistent with the Administrative Proce-
dure Act, and a list of State agencies whose 
procedures have been found inconsistent. 
When a finding of an agency not on either 
list is received, the Office will attempt to re-
liably determine the procedures used to 
render the findings. 

Section 42.209(a). Although the signature of 
the appropriate chief executives are ulti-
mately required on the compliance agree-
ment, these regulations do not preclude 
them from delegating the responsibility for 
securing compliance during the 90-day period 
following notification, to State or local ad-
ministrative or human rights agencies under 
their respective authority. A compliance 
agreement may be an agreement to comply 
over a period of time, particularly in com-
plex cases or where compliance would re-
quire an extended period of time for imple-
mentation. 

Section 42.209(b). The regulations require 
that a copy of the proposed compliance 
agreement be sent to the complainant, if 
any, before the effective date of the agree-
ment. Although the Act would permit a copy 
to be sent as late as the effective date, 
OJARS believes the compliance agreement 
would be more likely to resolve all concerns 
and discourage litigation if the complain-
ant’s views were considered before it took ef-
fect. 

Section 42.211(b). An example of a case 
where compliance would require an extended 
period of time for implementation would be 
a court order setting a goal of five years for 
an employer to raise the percentage of mi-
norities in its workforce to parity with the 
percentage of minorities in the relevant geo-
graphical labor force. 

Section 42.213. The full hearing will be con-
ducted in accordance with JSIA Hearing and 
Appeal Procedures, 28 CFR 18.1, et seq. 

Section 42.215(a). In a December 20, 1976 let-
ter to the Administrator of LEAA, Congress-
man Peter Rodino, Chairman of the House 
Judiciary Committee, commented on the 
regulations proposed to implement the sub-
stantially identical nondiscrimination provi-
sions of the Crime Control Act. He advised 
the Administrator that ‘‘the committee in-
tentionally omitted the word ‘refer’ from the 
law to ensure that LEAA would always re-
tain administrative jurisdiction over a com-
plaint filed with them. It is not appropriate 
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for LEAA to refer cases to the Civil Rights 
Division or other Federal or State agencies 
without monitoring the case for prompt res-
olution.’’ 

Section 42.215(c)(2). The exhaustion of ad-
ministrative remedies at the end of 60 days 
(unless the Office has made a determination) 
does not limit OJARS’ authority to inves-
tigate a complaint after the expiration of 
that period. OJARS will continue to inves-
tigate the complaint after the end of the 60- 
day period, if necessary, in accordance with 
the provisions of § 42.205. 

Subpart E—Equal Employment 
Opportunity Program Guidelines 

AUTHORITY: Sec. 501 of the Omnibus Crime 
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, Pub. L. 
90–351, 82 Stat. 197, as amended. 

SOURCE: 43 FR 28802, June 30, 1978, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 42.301 Purpose. 
The experience of the Law Enforce-

ment Assistance Administration in im-
plementing its responsibilities under 
the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe 
Streets Act of 1968, as amended (Pub. 
L. 90–351, 82 Stat. 197; Pub. L. 91–644, 84 
Stat. 1881) has demonstrated that the 
full and equal participation of women 
and minority individuals in employ-
ment opportunities in the criminal jus-
tice system is a necessary component 
to the Safe Streets Act’s program to 
reduce crime and delinquency in the 
United States. 

§ 42.302 Application. 
(a) Recipient means any State or local 

unit of government or agency thereof, 
and any private entity, institution, or 
organization, to which Federal finan-
cial assistance is extended directly, or 
through such government or agency, 
but such term does not include any ul-
timate beneficiary of such assistance. 

(b) The obligation of a recipient to 
formulate, implement, and maintain 
an equal employment opportunity pro-
gram, in accordance with this subpart, 
extends to State and local police agen-
cies, correctional agencies, criminal 
court systems, probation and parole 
agencies, and similar agencies respon-
sible for the reduction and control of 
crime and delinquency. 

(c) Assignments of compliance re-
sponsibility for title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964 have been made by 
the Department of Justice to the De-
partment of Health and Human Serv-
ices, covering educational institutions 
and general hospital or medical facili-
ties. Similarly, the Department of 
Labor, in pursuance of its authority 
under Executive Orders 11246 and 11375, 
has assigned responsibility for moni-
toring equal employment opportunity 
under government contracts with med-
ical and educational institutions, and 
non-profit organizations, to the De-
partment of Health and Human Serv-
ices. Accordingly, monitoring responsi-
bility in compliance matters in agen-
cies of the kind mentioned in this para-
graph rests with the Department of 
Health and Human Services, and agen-
cies of this kind are exempt from the 
provisions of this subpart, and are not 
responsible for the development of 
equal employment opportunity pro-
grams in accordance herewith. 

(d) Each recipient of LEAA assist-
ance within the criminal justice sys-
tem which has 50 or more employees 
and which has received grants or sub-
grants of $25,000 or more pursuant to 
and since the enactment of the Safe 
Streets Act of 1968, as amended, and 
which has a service population with a 
minority representation of 3 percent or 
more, is required to formulate, imple-
ment and maintain an equal employ-
ment opportunity program relating to 
employment practices affecting minor-
ity persons and women within 120 days 
after either the promulgation of these 
amended guidelines, or the initial ap-
plication for assistance is approved, 
whichever is sooner. Where a recipient 
has 50 or more employees, and has re-
ceived grants or subgrants of $25,000 or 
more, and has a service population 
with a minority representation of less 
than 3 percent, such recipient is re-
quired to formulate, implement, and 
maintain an equal employment oppor-
tunity program relating to employ-
ment practices affecting women. For a 
definition of ‘‘employment practices’’ 
within the meaning of this paragraph, 
see § 42.202(c). 

VerDate Mar<15>2010 10:38 Aug 21, 2014 Jkt 232112 PO 00000 Frm 01123 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8002 Q:\28\28V1.TXT 31


		Superintendent of Documents
	2020-01-30T03:01:32-0500
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




